Pursuant to notice, the case was heard in Indiana,
Pennsylvania/ on December 20, 1983.  Roy Graver, Thomas Grove
and Harry Losier testified for the Secretary of Labor; David
Duplin, Albert Cribbs and Robert D. Anderson testified for
Helvetia.  The parties waived their right to file posthearing
briefs, and each made oral argument on the record at the con-
clusion of the hearing.  Based on the entire record and consid-
ering the contentions of the parties, I make the following
decision.
ISSUES
 1.	Was the violation of 30 C.F.R. § 75.200 charged in
Order No. 2015555 caused by an unwarrantable failure of the
operator to comply with the mandatory standard in question?
 2.	What is the appropriate penalty for the violation?
FINDINGS OF FACT
 1.	At all times pertinent hereto, Helvetia owned and
operated the subject mine from which it extracted coal.
 2.	Helvetia produced 2,579,824 tons of coal annually, of
which the subject mine produced 533,139 tons.  Companies
affiliated with Helvetia produced an additional 3,994,031 tons
annually.
3.	In February 1983, a large caved area existed in the
6 Butt intake escapeway of the subject mine.  The area was
14 feet wide and almost 20 feet long.  The cave height was more
than 69 inches, whereas the coal seam averaged approximately
48 inches high.
 4.	The cave-in had occurred 1 year or more prior to
February 28, 1983.  There was a fault condition running through
the roof in the area.
 5.	The roof in the area had been supported by 4 foot
resin bolts.
 6.	On February 25, 1983, at about 4:30 p.m., assistant
mine foreman Albert Cribbs examined the intake escapeway in the
6 Butt section of the subject mine from outby in, and traversed
the cave area.  He placed his initials on both the outby and
inby side of the cave and noted in the weekly air course inspeo
tion book that the area was in a safe and lawful condition.
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